
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
AGENDA 

January 8, 2019 
5:30 P.M.  – 1201 S. Washington Ave. 

Lansing, MI - REO Town Depot 
Board of Water & Light Headquarters 

AGENDA 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Public Comments on Agenda Items 

1.  Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes of November 6, 2018……….……….….…………….TAB 1 

2.  New Plant Update….………………………………….………………………………………….….…….….….INFO ONLY 

3.  Integrated Resource Plan (IRP)……………………………………………………….……………………...INFO ONLY 

4  .  Board Self-Evaluation Review.......................……......………………….…………………..……....INFO ONLY

Other 

Adjourn 



 

 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
Meeting Minutes 

November 6, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole of the Lansing Board of Water and Light (BWL) met at the BWL 
Headquarters-REO Town Depot located at 1201 S. Washington Ave., Lansing, MI, at 5:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, November 6, 2018. 
 

Committee of the Whole Chair Sandra Zerkle called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and asked the 
Corporate Secretary to call the roll.   
 

Present:  Commissioners Sandra Zerkle, Beth Graham, Tony Mullen, David Price, Ken Ross, Tracy 
Thomas, and Non-Voting Member: William Long (Delta Township), and Douglas Jester (East Lansing) 
 

Absent: Commissioner Anthony McCloud and Non-Voting Member Dion’trae Hayes (Lansing Township) 
 

The Corporate Secretary declared a quorum.  
 

Public Comments 
None.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

Other 
A special presentation was made by General Manager Dick Peffley to Amy and Trevor Feinberg, 
participants and first place winners in Halloween in Old Town at Preuss Pets, who dressed up their 
greyhound as the Eckert Station with smokestacks and Hometown Power Dog slogan. 
 

Approval of Minutes 
Motion by Commissioner Graham, Seconded by Commissioner Mullen, to approve the Committee of 
the Whole meeting minutes of September 18, 2018. 
 

Action:  Motion Carried. 
 

2019 Regular Board Meeting Schedule Resolution 
Committee of the Whole Chair Zerkle presented a proposed Resolution setting the BWL Board of 
Commissioners 201 Regular Board Meeting Dates as directed by Section 1.1.2 of the BWL’s Rules of 
Procedure.  
 

Motion by Commissioner Thomas, Seconded by Commissioner Graham, to approve the 2019 Regular 
Board Meeting Dates Resolution.  
 

Action: Motion Carried   
 

Michigan Public Power Agency (MPPA) Commissioner Appointment Resolution 

General Manager Peffley stated that the presented Resolution is naming James Mitchell as BWL’s 
First Alternate MPPA Commissioner to replace Bradley Stoecker who resigned his position with the 
BWL effective October 1, 2018 and asked that the Resolution be forwarded to the full Board for 
consideration.   
 



 

Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 6, 2018 

Page 2 of 8 

 

Motion by Commissioner Ross, Seconded by Commissioner Thomas to forward the proposed MPPA 
Commissioner Appointment Resolution to the full Board for consideration.  
 

Action:  Motion Carried  
 

Pole Attachment 
General Manager Peffley provided information on the pole attachment process and highlighted the 
following items: 

• BWL has roughly 32,000 distribution poles in our service territory, 42 contracting companies 
attaching to BWL poles in the BWL service territory, and over 130,000 third party contacts to 
our poles. 

• BWL has revenues of $582,982.28 for third party attachments and since January 1, 2018 BWL 
has received $70,323 in application fees from joint party attachments. 

• BWL currently receives $7.30 per pole attachment on an annual basis.  There is little expense 
to the BWL to attach to the poles and BWL encourages pole attachment. 

• Since January 2018, 1600 new attachments on poles have been processed and as part of the 
BWL double pole elimination program since May 2018, BWL has 50 poles and counting ready 
to be pulled over the winter/spring. 

• BWL currently has over 80 EPRS (Emergency Pole Replacement Slips) processing. 

• Attachers sign agreements to use the poles and current pole attachers are notified if 
adjustments need to be made.  Agreeable attachments do not always occur. 

• BWL would like to amend the agreements with the 42 contracting companies and claim the 
right to move the attachments if the companies do not agree to move. 

• Both Michigan and BWL are exempt from the recent FCC One Touch Make Ready order. 
 

Commissioner Price asked if a new attacher requests attachment to a pole who notifies the other 
attachers and what authority does the BWL have to move the attachers to make room for the new 
attacher.  GM Peffley stated that the new attacher notices the other attachers and that the BWL has 
no authority to move the attachers with which new contracts haven’t been renegotiated.  BWL can 
move the attachers that don’t meet current specifications.  
 

Commissioner Ross asked whether or not this would result in an amendment to the rate schedule, 
whether rate payers would be subsidizing this service, and whether data was available regarding 
whether this service would be provided in-house or with an outside partner.    GM Peffley stated that 
the pole attachments would be revenue neutral to BWL customers and rules and regulations would not 
need to be addressed as $7.30 per year per pole has been established.  GM Peffley also stated the 
service would be provided in-house unless it would be more proficient to hire a crew.  Commissioner 
Ross inquired if there was a separate charge for attachment besides the current rate structure of $7.30 
per pole.  GM responded that a second charge was a back charge for the labor to make the pole ready 
and the new attacher is responsible for paying that charge.   
 

Commissioner Zerkle asked if there was a deadline for a company going out of business to remove their 
pole attachment.  Ricky Thornton, Technical Systems Analyst for Customer Projects and Developments, 
responded that some deadlines are in place, and that arrangements are made to take the necessary 
attachments down. 



 

Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 6, 2018 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 

Commissioner Thomas inquired about the pole attachment process during the recent ice storm.  GM 
Peffley responded that restoring electricity was the main concern during the ice storm.  
 

Easement Grant to Consumers Energy Resolution 

General Manager Peffley introduced General Counsel Brandie Ekren, who provided information on 
the grant request for an easement to Consumers Energy Company to allow construction of gas lines 
and pipelines along Canal Road to serve the new BWL combined cycle plant.  The said easement grant 
request will be effective upon Lansing City Council’s approval.   
 

Commissioner Mullen asked if gas was going to be purchased from Consumers Energy.  GM Peffley 
responded that Consumers Energy owns the pipeline and will receive a fee for the pipeline.  Gas can 
be provided by BWL or purchased from Consumers Energy.   
 

Commissioner Ross asked for a description of the location for the pipeline.  GM responded that the 
easement is for property on Erickson.  George Stojic, Executive Director of Planning and Development 
responded that a new city gate is being constructed and hits the service territory extending from 
Saginaw Hwy west of 96, south to General Motors property to Mt. Hope Street to the east and to 
Canal Street.  
 

Motion by Commissioner Price, Seconded by Commissioner Thomas to forward the proposed 
Easement Grant to Consumers Energy Resolution to the full Board for consideration.  
 

Action:  Motion Carried. 
 

Enterprise Risk Management Update 
GM Peffley introduced George Stojic who stated that two projects were underway, the Enterprise Risk 
Management Strategy and Asset Management.  Mr. Stojic introduced Brandie Ekren, General Counsel 
for the Board of Water and Light, who spoke about Enterprise Risk Management Strategy 5, Objective 
4 from the Strategic Plan which was approved in 2016.  Ms. Ekren stated that program basics were a 
structured, consistent, and continuous process across an organization for identifying, assessing and 
deciding on responses to and reporting on opportunities and threats that affect the achievement of 
the organization’s objectives.  Ms. Ekren highlighted the summary tasks of quality assurance, 
engagement, and responsibility and accountability.  Ms. Ekren proposed an ERM program as a 2020 
milestone goal, to be approved in March 2019, that will include risk management coordinated across 
business areas, management performance and analysis tools, monitoring, strategy setting and scenario 
planning, and reporting responsibility. 
 



 

Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 6, 2018 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 

 
           



 

Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 6, 2018 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 
 
Commissioner Zerkle inquired what part the Internal Auditor plays in risk management.  Ms. Ekren 
responded that the Internal Auditor may provide information. 
 

Commissioner Ross asked whether BWL had an outside consultant that is familiar with complex 
organizations and utility space for the infrastructure.  Ms. Ekren responded that BWL’s outside 
consultant is Marsh Consulting and they have helped with setting up the risk assessment and finding 
out what other utilities are doing.   Commissioner Ross commented that having someone accountable 
for identified risk is critically important and welcomed Ms. Ekren to speak again to the Commissioners 
about the infrastructure of the Enterprise Risk Management program as it progresses. 
 

Commissioner Mullen commended Ms. Ekren on her presentation and asked for an example of a risk 
and how the risk would be managed.  Ms. Ekren responded that the asset management presentation 
that follows will provide the comparative benefits of managing risk and not managing risk.  Ms. Ekren 
also provided for an example a qualified work force and succession planning, and ensuring that 
employees are qualified to take on jobs and are trained to be able to do the job. 
 

Commissioner Jester asked whether risk to customer satisfaction, risk to reputation or predominately 
risk to physical and financial operational risks were being assessed.  Ms. Ekren responded that a variety 
of risks were being assessed including all of those stated in the question.  Commissioner Jester also 
asked what new risks were identified.  Ms. Ekren responded that what the utility would look like in the 
future, and also recognizing communication and information as an asset were two new risks that were 
identified. 
 



 

Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 6, 2018 

Page 6 of 8 

 

Commissioner Ross asked whether people understand what the organizational risk tolerance is for an 
activity, how activities are calibrated to risk presented and how much risk is tolerated.  Ms. Ekren 
responded that a baseline of risk has been established but there is no uniform standard and more 
insight will be provided in March 2019 at the Committee of the Whole meeting. 
 

Commissioner Zerkle commented that instead of saying what is the risk, say what is the problem and 
what is the solution.  Ms. Ekren stated that that is the reason there is a focus on creating a uniform 
definition and the objective of what is getting in the way of the stakeholder realizing the value.   
 

Asset Management Update 
Dave Bolan, Executive Director of Operations, introduced Jerry Flore, Asset Management Manager, 
who presented a video of the Asset Management Journey and gave an update on some current 
initiatives.  Mr. Flores stated that another update will be provided in March 2019.  Mr. Bolan agreed 
with Ms. Ekren’s proposal to walk through actual scenarios of how assets are classified as critical and 
the risk they pose to the organization if they are not properly maintained or replaced in a timely 
manner. This will be done at the March 2019 COW. 
 

…..

….. …..



 

Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 6, 2018 

Page 7 of 8 

 

          

           

        

           
 

Commissioner Price asked about the demographics on the heat map and Mr. Flore responded that 
more main breaks occur where there is red on the map.   
 

Commissioner Ross asked three questions:  where is the BWL at in the asset management process; at 
what time will BWL be at the maturity level for asset management; and will this result in additional 
reporting and greater transparency.  Dave Bolan responded that the BWL is in the process of deciding 
how some of the elements will be applied and has decided on how some elements will be applied and 
implementing those elements; BWL is scheduled to be at Maturity Level #3 at the end of 2020; and 
that a capital budget is created, an investment is made which removes risk, and assets are managed 
based on their criticality.  Commissioner Ross also asked if the risk is only for physical assets.  Mr. Bolan 
responded that scores and measurements are made for all potential risks.   
 



 

Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 6, 2018 

Page 8 of 8 

 

Commissioner Price inquired if trees as a risk was a good characterization of asset management and 
Mr. Bolan concurred.  Commissioner Price also asked whether the report in March 2019 will have the 
information integrated into the budget planning.  Mr. Flores responded that a draft risk matrix to 
develop a process for the capital budget projects is in progress. 
 

Commissioner Zerkle inquired whether the Internal Auditor is included in the discussions for asset 
management.  Internal Auditor Phil Perkins responded that he has some involvement with the project 
and added that there are two factors to consider, the probability of risk and the impact of an 
occurrence.  Commissioner Zerkle asked whether the human factor was to be considered for asset 
management.  GM Peffley stated that is another area and another department has been created for 
that. 
 

Commissioner Long commented that the human factor had been mentioned under Enterprise Risk 
Management.  He also thanked GM Peffley for sharing the MPPA presentation. 
 
Commissioner Jester asked what the focus was on for demonstrating to the staff that asset 
management has value.  Mr. Flore responded that a pilot program was conducted in which work orders 
were run to validate software functionality.  Commissioner Jester stated that BWL has a number of 
assets and he would like this be in the budget process. 
 

Other 
Motion by Commissioner Graham, Seconded by Commissioner Ross, to excuse Commissioners Anthony 
McCloud and Dion’trae Hayes from tonight’s meeting. 
 

Action: Motion Carried   
 
Commissioner Price informed the Commissioners that there will be a ceremony honoring veterans at 
11:00 am on Friday at the REO Depot and that he will be playing drums along with his pipe major during 
the event. 
 
Adjourn 
Motion by Commissioner Price to adjourn the meeting.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 

 
Respectfully Submitted 
Sandra Zerkle, Chair 
Committee of the Whole 

 


	Agenda
	Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes, November 6, 2018

